
CALL TO ORDER 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



 

TICO AIRPORT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PAGE 1 OF 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2025  5 P.M.  TICO AA ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

355 GOLDEN KNIGHTS BOULEVARD  TITUSVILLE, FL  32780 
 

 

AGENDA 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Approval of Agenda 

E. Approval of Minutes 

a. January 16, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes 

F. Action Items 

Lease Agreement 

a. Approval: Lease Amendment # 1 with Merritt Island Aviation for the improvements 
located at Merritt Island Airport.   
 

G. Staff Reports 

a. Director of Airports Update  

b. Deputy Director of Operations and Maintenance 

i. Capital Improvement Projects Update 
ii. Operations Report  

 
c. Report: Deputy Director of Finance & Administration 

i. November 2024, December 2024 and January 2025 Check Register 

ii. November 2024 Preliminary Financial Statements 

iii. December 2024 Preliminary Financial Statements 

iv. January 2025 Preliminary Financial Statements 

d. Report: Authority Attorney 

e. Reports: Authority Members 

f. Public Comments 

g. Adjourn 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  1 January 16, 2025 
 

TITUSVILLE – COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority was held 
on January 16, 2025, at 5 p.m., at the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority 
Office, 355 Golden Knights Boulevard, Titusville, Florida, and via video 
conference. The following members were present: Mr. John Craig, 
Chairman; Mr. Donn Mount, Vice Chairman; Mr. Al Voss, Treasurer; Mr. 
Roger Molitor; Mr. Brad Whitmore; Mr. Michael Gindling; Mr. Kevin 
Daugherty, AAE, Director of Airports; and Mr. Adam Bird, Esq.  Mr. Mark 
Grainger was absent. 
 

Call to Order 
  

Mr. Craig called the meeting to order and determined a quorum was 
present. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Members and attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 

 
Mr. Craig called for any changes or additions to the agenda. Mr. Daugherty 
stated there were none.  
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. 
Molitor made a motion to approve. Mr. Voss seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed. 
 

Approval of Meeting Minutes: 
 
1. December 05, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve December 05, 2024; meeting 
minutes as presented. Mr. Whitmore made a motion to approve. Mr. 
Molitor seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

 
Swearing in of New Board Member: 
 

Attorney, Adam Bird, executed the swearing in of the Titusville-Cocoa 
Airport Authority’s newest Board Member, Mr. Michael Gindling.  Mr. 
Gindling introduced himself to the Board. 

 
Action Items  

 
1. Acquisition 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  2 January 16, 2025 
 

 
a. Approval of the Lease Termination and Property Transfer 

Agreement between Sheltair Dunn, LLC and Sheltair Space 
Coast LLC for the improvements located at Arthur Dunn 
Airpark and Space Coast Regional Airport. 
 
Mr. Daugherty provided an overview of the Lease Termination and 
Property Transfer Agreement between Sheltair Dunn, LLC and 
Sheltair Space Coast, LLC for the improvements located at Arthur 
Dunn Airpark.  Mr. Daugherty requested Attorney Adam Bird 
review the agreement further with the Board. 
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve the Lease Termination and 
Property Transfer Agreement as presented by Mr. Daugherty.  Mr. 
Molitor made a motion to approve as presented.  Mr. Voss seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed. 

 
2. Grants 

 
a. Approval of FDOT Public Transportation Grant Agreement 

(FPN 456310-1-94-01) and Associated Resolution in the amount 
of $640,000 for the Acquisition of the Sheltair Aviation 
Improvements located at Arthur Dunn Airpark. 

 
Mr. Daugherty provided an overview of the FDOT Public 
Transportation Grant Agreement (FPN 456310-1-94-01) and 
Associated Resolution for the Acquisition of the Sheltair Aviation 
Improvements located at Arthur Dunn Airpark and recommended 
approval. 
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve the FDOT Public 
Transportation Grant Agreement and Associated Resolution as 
presented.  
 
Mr. Whitmore made a motion to approve as presented. 
Mr. Voss seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

 
3. Truist Line of Credit 

 
a. Approval Authorizing the acceptance of the proposal from 

Truist Bank to increase the Authority’s Taxable Revolving Line 
of Credit up to $4,000,000 for working capital and short-term 
financing in support of ongoing capital projects. 

 
Mr. Daugherty discussed the proposal from Truist Bank to increase 
the Authority’s Taxable Revolving Line of Credit for working 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  3 January 16, 2025 
 

capital and short-term financing to support ongoing capital projects 
and recommended approval from the Board. 
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve the increase of the 
Authority’s Taxable Revolving Line of Credit as presented by Mr. 
Daugherty. 
 
Mr. Molitor made a motion to approve as presented. Mr. Voss 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

 
4. Lease and License Agreements 

 
a. Approval of Lease Agreement with High Wing Flight Training, 

Incorporated for the improvements located at 355 Golden 
Knights Blvd facility (Suite 4 and Apron). 

 
Mr. Daugherty provided an overview of the lease agreement with 
High Wing Flight Training, Incorporated and recommended 
approval from the Board.  
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve the lease agreement with 
High Wing Flight Training, Incorporated as presented by Mr. 
Daugherty.   
 
Mr. Voss made a motion to approve as presented.  Mr. Whitmore 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

 
b. Approval of License Agreement with Indian River Honey 

Company, LLC for temporary use of non-aeronautical property 
located at the Space Coast Regional Airport. 

 
Mr. Daugherty gave a brief description of the License Agreement 
with Indian River Honey Company, LLC for temporary use of non-
aeronautical property located at the Space Coast Regional Airport 
and recommended approval from the Board. 
 
Mr. Craig called for a motion to approve as presented by Mr. 
Daugherty. 
 
Mr. Voss made a motion to approve.  Mr. Molitor seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed. 

 
5. 2025 Election of Officers 

 
a. Approval of Airport Authority Board of Directors Officers 

Positions 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  4 January 16, 2025 
 

Mr. Craig called an open floor for any or all positions on the Board. 
Due to the potential need to have additional check runs for the 
upcoming capital projects, Mr. Daugherty stated the Treasurer 
Board Member should have more availability than previous years.    
 
Mr. Craig made the motion of all current Board Member positions, 
remaining the same with the addition of Mr. Mark Grainger as the 
new Secretary of the Board.  All voted aye.  Motion passed. 

 
Staff Reports 
 

1. Director of Airports Update 
 
Mr. Daugherty gave an overview of the upcoming 2025 Airports 
interests which include the following: 
 
MAG Aerospace (existing TIX westside tenant) has expressed interest 
in expanding their operation.  The company has recently been awarded 
a US Army contract to maintain (2) Global Express aircraft.  
 
Health First is interested in relocating a portion of their medevac fleet 
to Titusville from Melbourne to service the North Brevard area. 
 
Space X has expressed interest in temporary vehicle parking at TIX.  
The company requires overflow parking in support of their GigaBay 
project at KSC.     
 
Space Coast Executive Jet Center is looking to expand their outdated 
building which requires more space.  
 
Mr. Daugherty discussed meeting newly elected officials within the City 
of Titusville and Brevard County and keeping lines of communication 
open with the funding agencies.  
 

2. Deputy Director of Operations and Maintenance Report 
 

a. Capital Improvement Projects Update 
 

Mr. Hopman discussed details regarding the Challenger Avenue 
Extension (Phase 1) project is moving forward with the 
commencement of the survey. 

 
Mr. Hopman stated the 18 / 36 Rehabilitation Design / Construction 
Project at the Space Coast Regional Airport start time has been 
pushed back until April or May of this year due to the need to 
remove the gopher tortoises.  



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  5 January 16, 2025 
 

 
Mr. Hopman discussed the details regarding the Air Traffic Control 
Tower at Space Coast Regional Airport which consisted of the 
staging area in place and utility easements in progress. 

 
Mr. Hopman stated the Space Coast Regional Airfield Marking 
Project will continue for the next couple of weeks. 

 
Mr. Hopman stated the Northeast Corporate Hangar Project (Design 
and Permitting) at Space Coast Regional Airport is underway with 
30% of the drawings being ready by February. 

 
Mr. Hopman stated the Runway 11/29 Rehabilitation Design at 
Merritt Island Airport has 60% of the design drawings complete and 
are now under review. 
 

b. Operations Report 
 
Mr. Hopman stated there were no noise complaints from Arthur 
Dunn Airpark nor Space Coast Regional Airport.  All noise 
complaints from the Merritt Island Airport were from the same 
individual.  Mr. Hopman reviewed the operations of all three 
airports with the Board.  
 
Mr. Hopman gave a brief overview of current repairs that were 
completed at the Skydive hangar at Arthur Dunn Airpark along with 
replacing corroded fixtures on the airfield.  
 
Mr. Hopman gave details regarding the repairs and updates done to 
Suite # 4 of the East Terminal Facility located at the Space Coast 
Regional Airport.  
 
Mr. Hopman reviewed  a few of the repairs that were done at the 
Merritt Island Airport which included T-hangars, lighting and gate 
repairs. 
 

3. Deputy Director of Finance and Administration Report 
 

The review of the December 2024 financials and check register were 
postponed until Feb 20th, 2025 meeting.  
 

Authority Attorney Report 
 

Mr. Bird gave ongoing details regarding the eviction of Islands International 
at the Merritt Island Airport with no conclusion at this time. 
 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING  6 January 16, 2025 
 

Mr. Bird stated that an eviction was filed against Space Perspective at the 
Space Coast Regional Airport due to non-payment of rent. 
 

Authority Member’s Report 
 

Mr. Craig called for any comments or questions from the Board.   
There were none. 

 
Public Comments 
 

Mr. Craig called for public comments.  
 
Mayor Andrew Conners introduced himself to the Board and gave a brief 
overview of his background. 
 
Mr. Oscar Garcia, with Flight Global Corporation, discussed the current and 
future progress at the Space Coast Regional Airport. 
 
Mr. Donn White from the EAA at the Merritt Island Airport discussed the 
events of the upcoming Poker Run on January 18, 2025, and the Young 
Eagles event on January 25, 2025. 
 

Adjournment 
 
 Mr. Craig adjourned the meeting at 6:06 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 JOHN CRAIG, CHAIRMAN  
          
  
 
 DONN MOUNT, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS 



 
 

Merritt Island Aviation  
First Amendment to Aeronautical Lease and Development Agreement 

Executive Summary  
 

Background:    
 
On May 13, 2021, the Authority approved a long-term aeronautical lease and 
development agreement with Merritt Island Aviation for the improvements 
located at 475 Manor Drive at Merritt Island Airport.  
  
General Overview of the First Amendment    
 
The original lease agreement did have a proper ‘Exhibit A’ that identified the legal 
description of the property or improvements (dimensions).  The new ‘Exhibit A’ 
(legal survey) provides the correct square footages of the property boundary and 
building dimensions.  This allows the correct rents to be captured on the 
leasehold.   The rest of the lease material terms and conditions remain the same.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Authority approve the First Amendment to the 
Aeronautical Lease and Development Agreement dated May 13, 2021.   



 
First Amendment to Lease Dated 05/13/2021 – TCAA/Merritt Island Aviation, Inc. 

Page 1 of 5 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AERONAUTICAL LEASE AND 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DATED MAY 13, 2021 

The TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY, as the governing body of the 
Titusville Cocoa Airport District, a special taxing district existing by and under the laws of the 
State of Florida (the "Authority"), and MERRITT ISLAND AVIATION, INC., a Florida 
corporation with its principal place of business located at 475 Manor Drive, Hangar #5, Merritt 
Island, FL 32780 (the "Lessee"), have entered into this First Amendment to Aeronautical Lease 
and Development Agreement Dated May 13, 2021 (the “First Amendment”) on this 
20th day of February, 2025 (the “First Amendment Effective Date”). The Authority and Lessee 
are collectively referred to as the "Parties” and each a “Party,” and the Parties do hereby agree as 
follows: 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Authority owns and operates airports known as Arthur Dunn Airpark (X21), 
Space Coast Regional Airport (TIX), and Merritt Island Airport (COI), and Authority is desirous 
of continuing to lease to Lessee certain premises hereinafter more fully described and located at 
Merritt Island Airport; and 

WHEREAS, Authority and Lessee are currently parties to an existing, written Aeronautical 
Lease and Development Agreement dated May 13, 2021 (the “Lease”) concerning an aeronautical 
parcel of real property, together with various improvements and apron space, located at Merritt 
Island Airport and totaling 35,222.70 square feet (the “Property,” as more specifically identified 
on Exhibit “A” to this First Amendment), by way of which Lessee has had quiet use, enjoyment 
and occupancy of the Property since the inception of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, Authority and Lessee recently discovered that there exist certain inadvertent 
and unintentional errors and omissions in the Lease that have resulted in: (a) an incorrect rental 
rate being paid by Lessee since the commencement of its obligation to pay sums due Authority 
under the Lease, and (b) an incorrect legal description and depiction of the Property, both in the 
Lease and through its exhibits, whereby certain portions of the demised Property were 
inadvertently omitted therefrom; and 

WHEREAS, Authority and Lessee desire to correct the errors and omissions in the Lease 
going back to its commencement and enter into this First Amendment in order to accomplish the 
same; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions 
herein contained, along with the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) in hand paid by each 
Party hereto to the other, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged by each Party hereto, the Parties do hereby mutually and 
voluntarily agree and covenant: 

1. The Lease shall be amended as follows: 
 



 
First Amendment to Lease Dated 05/13/2021 – TCAA/Merritt Island Aviation, Inc. 

Page 2 of 5 
 

(a) The second paragraph of “ARTICLE I LEASED PREMISES” of the Lease 
beginning “To the extent it has not yet been provided…” shall be deleted 
and removed from the Lease in its entirety. 
 

(b) Section 3.1 of the Lease entitled “Rent” shall be deleted and removed from 
the Lease in its entirety and shall be replaced with the following provisions: 

 
Section 3.1 - Rent. 
 

For the purpose of computing the rental payments, Authority and Lessee 
agree that the Property is comprised of: (a) 44,215.20 square feet, more or less, 
together with apron space (the “Land”), and (b) improvements on the Land 
consisting of a 3,934.80 square foot corporate hangar (the “Corporate Hangar”) 
and a separate 3,934.80 square foot hangar with utility room (“Hangar #5”), all of 
which as identified more specifically on Exhibit “A & B”. The annual base rental 
rate for the Property shall be and consist of: (a) $0.35 per square foot for the Land 
totaling $15,475.32 annually, (b) $13.00 per square foot for the Corporate Hangar 
totaling $51,152.40 annually, and (c) $4.00 per square foot for Hangar #5 totaling 
$15,739.20 annually, for a total initial annual rental rate for the Property of 
$82,366.92 (the “Annual Base Rent”). Annual Base Rent increases based on the 
Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) shall be applied annually (based upon the 
Commencement Date of the Lease) throughout the term and any valid extension(s) 
thereof, with the exception of the five-year fair market value readjustments set forth 
in section 3.03 of the Lease, below. 
 

(c) The first sentence of Section 3.03 of the Lease entitled “Adjustment of 
Annual Base Rent” shall be deleted and removed from the Lease in its 
entirety and shall be replaced with the following sentence: 
 

The Annual Base Rent payable to Authority by Lessee shall be adjusted at 
the end of each five (5) year term, beginning with the Commencement Date, 
through the balance of this Lease, including any extensions thereof, and shall be 
determined by the Fair Market Value of the Property including all improvements 
thereto and/or thereon. 

 
(d) The first sentence of Section 3.04 of the Lease entitled “Time of Payment” 

shall be deleted and removed from the Lease in its entirety and shall be 
replaced with the following sentence: 
 

Initial Annual Base Rent shall be due to Authority from Lessee in twelve 
(12) equal monthly installments of $5,827.33, plus applicable sales tax thereon. 
 
2. Exhibit “A” appended to this First Amendment shall be substituted and become 

Exhibit “A” to and for the Lease and shall be treated as though it was part and parcel of the Lease 



 
First Amendment to Lease Dated 05/13/2021 – TCAA/Merritt Island Aviation, Inc. 

Page 3 of 5 
 

from the Lease’s Effective Date, May 13, 2021, and as though the prior Exhibit “A” to the Lease 
not appended to this First Amendment had never existed or been a part of the Lease. All references 
in the Lease to Exhibit “A” shall refer to Exhibit “A” to this First Amendment. 

 
3. Exhibit “B” appended to this First Amendment shall be substituted and become 

Exhibit “B” to and for the Lease and shall be treated as though it was part and parcel of the Lease 
from the Lease’s Effective Date, May 13, 2021, and as though the prior Exhibit “B” to the Lease 
not appended to this First Amendment had never existed or been a part of the Lease. All references 
in the Lease to Exhibit “B” shall refer to Exhibit “B” to this First Amendment. 

 
4. For avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the “Construction 

Commencement Date” as that term is used in and defined by the Lease is [February 17,2023]. 
 
5. Authority and Lessee agree and acknowledge that as of the First Amendment 

Effective Date, Lessee’s total Construction Contribution as that term is defined by and in Section 
3.07 of the Lease, entitled “Lessee’s Payment for Authority Improvements and Rent Abatement,” 
is $  [$524,088.55]  , with Lessee having actually paid and/or reimbursed to Authority as of the 
First Amendment Effective Date the sum of $   [$405,735.00]  , and there still due and owing from 
Lessee to Authority for the Constriction Contribution currently the sum of $   [$118,353.55]  . 

 
6. Authority and Lessee agree and acknowledge that as a result of scrivener’s errors 

and an incomplete “Exhibit A” to the Lease, the annual base rent charged to Lessee by Authority 
from the Effective Date of the Lease through the Effective Date of this First Amendment was not 
accurate and less than what was due and owing based upon the condition and status of the Property 
and Authority improvements thereon. As such, Authority and Lessee agree and acknowledge that 
the following constitutes the actual amount of base rent due Authority from Lessee for the 
Property, Hangar #5 and the Corporate Hangar from the Effective Date of the Lease through the 
First Amendment Effective Date without regard to the erroneous Lease provisions and exhibit: 

 
Year  Actual Base Rent  Base Rent Charged  Balance 
6/1/2021 $14,230.22   $0    $14,230.22 
6/1/2022 $14,287.14   $0    $14,287.14 
6/1/2023 $15,472.97   $0    $15,472.97 
6/1/2024 $82,366.92   $0    $82,366.92 
6/1/2025 $85,101.50   $0    $85,101.50 

  



 
First Amendment to Lease Dated 05/13/2021 – TCAA/Merritt Island Aviation, Inc. 

Page 4 of 5 
 

7. Based upon the calculations set forth in paragraph 6, above, Authority and Lessee 
agree and acknowledge that: (a) the difference between base rent actually charged to Lessee by 
Authority (and credited against the Construction Contribution) and the correct amount of base rent 
that should have been charged to Lessee by Authority for the Effective Date of the Lease through 
the First Amendment Effective Date is $105,765.39 (the “Corrected Base Rent Total”); and (b) 
the Corrected Base Rent Total shall be applied to and correspondingly reduce the balance of 
Leesee’s Construction Contribution and shall thereby be satisfied by Lessee assuming the balance 
of Lessee’s Construction Contribution exceeds the Corrected Base Rent Total. 

 
8. Additionally, and again assuming the balance of Lessee’s Construction 

Contribution exceeds the Corrected Base Rent Total, all base rental sums due and owing from 
Lessee to Authority pursuant to the Lease as amended by this First Amendment shall be credited 
towards and against, and thereby reduce the balance of, Lessee’s Construction Contribution until 
such time as said Construction Contribution is completely exhausted and has no remaining 
balance, after which such time base rent under the Lease as amended by this First Amendment 
shall be due and payable by Lessee to Authority pursuant to the terms of the Lease as amended by 
this First Amendment. 

 
9. Except as expressly and specifically modified by this Amendment, all other terms, 

provisions, rights and obligations of the Parties set forth in the Lease shall remain valid, 
enforceable and in full force and effect, and the Parties agree to be bound by and fully comply 
with those terms, provisions, rights and obligations.  In the event of any direct conflict between 
the terms of the Lease and the terms of this First Amendment, the terms of this First Amendment 
shall control. 

 
(Signature Page Follows) 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
First Amendment to Lease Dated 05/13/2021 – TCAA/Merritt Island Aviation, Inc. 

Page 5 of 5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals on 
the date first above written. 
 
 

TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY 

Witness  
By: ________________________________   

KEVIN DAUGHERTY, AAE    
Director of Airports 

Witness   

Approved as to Form and Legality this ______   
Day of ________ , 2025 
 
WhiteBird, PLLC 

By:   _________________________________  
Adam M. Bird, Esq., Counsel/Titusville-Cocoa  
Airport Authority 

 
* * * 

 
MERRITT ISLAND AVIATION, INC. 
 

      
Witness      By:        
      
       As Its:        
      
Witness      Print Name:      
   



© 2025 Microsoft Corporation © 2025 Maxar ©CNES (2025) Distribution Airbus DS 

ES
B

Merritt Island Airport (COI)

N

0 40' 80'

NEW CONSTRUCTION AREA EXHIBIT - EXHIBIT A

AIRPORT RD

MANOR DR

PARKING LOT
(AREA: 3034.7 SF)

18.12'

BUILDING ADDRESS: 415 MANOR Dr, MERRITT ISLAND FL
(AREA: 3934.8 SF)

PARKING LOT EXTENSION
(AREA: 2318 SF)

PARCEL LIMITS
(AREA: 25249.1 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV



© 2025 Microsoft Corporation © 2025 Maxar ©CNES (2025) Distribution Airbus DS 

ES
B

Merritt Island Airport (COI)

N

0 40' 80'

OLD BUILDING AREA EXHIBIT - EXHIBIT B

AIRPORT RD

MANOR DR

17.04'

18.12'

BUILDING ADDRESS: 475 MANOR Dr, MERRITT ISLAND FL
(AREA: 3934.8 SF)

PAVEMENT AREA:
(AREA: 1508.5 SF)

PARCEL LIMITS
(AREA: 18966.1 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Original Agreement 

































































































































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT 
Director of Airports

  



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   February 20, 2025 
 
TO:   Airport Authority Board Members  
 
FROM:  Kevin Daugherty, AAE 
  Director of Airports  
  
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report     
 
Business Development Leads   
Health First – The First Flight EC-135 MEDEVAC fleet is currently based in MLB.  Health 
First has expressed interest in relocating (2) of the helicopters along with crew quarters 
to TIX due to the emergency call volume that occurs in North Brevard.  The company is 
interested in negotiating an agreement with the Authority to occupy the Airport’s Fire 
Station. A market value appraisal has been ordered for the premises and is scheduled to 
be completed by the end of this month.   
 
Space X – discussions continue with the company regarding temporary overflow 
vehicular parking to relieve the contractor parking strain they currently have at the 
Space Center due to their GigaBay development project.   
 
Space Coast Executive Jet Center – the Fixed Based Operator currently operates out of 
their facility at the end of Challenger Avenue.  The company has outgrown the facility 
and needs additional space to accommodate the uptick in corporate operations.    The 
company has expressed interest in the 1 Bristow Way property.   
 
Spaceport License  
We have submitted our Spaceport renewal application along with supporting 
documentation to the FAA for approval.  The current license expires in May 2025.   
 
Industry Events  
 
FAA Southern Region Conference 
 
Christy and I had the opportunity to attend the FAA’s Annual Southern Region 
Conference on Feb 4th & 5th in Atlanta, Georgia. The FAA offered a variety of topics  



Page 2 
 
focusing on Airport Engineering, Airport Planning and Design, Environmental, Part 139 
Airport Certification and Safety, Compliance sessions and Headquarters updates.  
 
Global Spaceport Alliance Summit  
 
I attended the 10th Annual GSA Summitt in Orlando on January 27th. There were 36 
international and domestic spaceports in attendance.  All Spaceports provide an 
individual update on recent happenings at their facilities.  Topics for the workshop 
included presentations by the FAA’s Office of Space Transportation, integration of 
spaceflight standards, remote spaceports and education initiatives. This was also an 
excellent networking opportunity for all spaceports and industry consultants.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 



Airport Project Updates
• Challenger Ave Extension Phase I
• TIX Rwy 18/36 Rehab Design
• TIX Air Traffic Control Tower
• TIX Airfield Marking Project
• TIX Northeast Corp Hangar Project
• COI Runway 11/29 Rehab Design



• PROJECT: Challenger Avenue 
Extension Phase I

• BUDGET: $460,000- Design (100%
funded by NBEDZ)

• CURRENT STATUS: Survey and geo-
tech complete. Design underway. 
Project will go out to bid May of 2025.



• PROJECT: TIX RWY 18/36 Rehabilitation 
Design/Construction

2% Local)• BUDGET: $806,000 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT,
– Design
$10,332,122 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT, 2%
Local) - Construction

• CURRENT STATUS: Gopher tortoise survey 
complete (96 burrows). Construction expected to 
start in May of 2025.



• PROJECT: Airport Traffic Control Tower – Space Coast Regional

• BUDGET: $1,040,00 (80% FDOT, 20% Local) – Design
$8,875,000 ($2,000,000 FAA, 80% FDOT, 20% Local) -
Construction

• CURRENT STATUS: Pre construction meeting with City of 
Titusville for site work commencement February 25th . 
Currently addressing building permit comments. 



• PROJECT: Space Coast Regional 
Airfield Marking Project

• BUDGET: $171,961 (90% FAA, 
8% FDOT, 2% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: Project 
substantially complete. Addressing 
punch list items and project 
closeout.



• PROJECT: Space Coast Regional 
Northeast Corporate Hangar Design 
Project

• BUDGET: $775,000 (80% FDOT,
20% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: 30% design 
review expected by February 21st. 



• PROJECT: Merritt Island Airport Runway 11-29 Rehab Design

• BUDGET: $407,537 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT, 2% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: 90% design review meeting held February 14th, 



Airport Noise Complaints
December 2024

X21 - 0

TIX – 0

COI – 18



January 2025 Average Daily Operations

X21      94
TIX       299
COI      275

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

F M A M J J A S O N D J

2024/2025 Operations

X21 TIX COI

Data collected by VirTower



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHECK REGISTER 



TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER
NOVEMBER 2024

Vendor Type Num Date Amount

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6544 11/01/2024 407.61

321 Flags and Gifts, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6545 11/01/2024 262.80

Advent Electric LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6546 11/01/2024 982.92

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6547 11/01/2024 282.55

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Serv Bill Pmt -Check 6548 11/01/2024 30,467.00

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6549 11/01/2024 472.16

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6550 11/01/2024 1,740.12

AT&T Internet Bill Pmt -Check 6551 11/01/2024 64.20

AT&T Mobility Bill Pmt -Check 6552 11/01/2024 407.84

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6553 11/01/2024 66.90

Central Hydraulics Bill Pmt -Check 6554 11/01/2024 199.83

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6555 11/01/2024 49.73

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6556 11/01/2024 1,186.23

Dish Bill Pmt -Check 6557 11/01/2024 87.10

Dynafire Bill Pmt -Check 6558 11/01/2024 1,168.42

Florida Coast Equipment Bill Pmt -Check 6559 11/01/2024 668.66

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6560 11/01/2024 1,714.36

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6561 11/01/2024 744.08

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6562 11/01/2024 1,498.42

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering Bill Pmt -Check 6563 11/01/2024 85,677.67

Media 1 Signs Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6564 11/01/2024 2,255.00

NAPA Auto Parts Bill Pmt -Check 6565 11/01/2024 279.98

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6566 11/01/2024 37,197.42

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6567 11/01/2024 15,126.94

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6568 11/01/2024 25,269.97

Safeguard Business Systems, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6569 11/01/2024 180.51

SiteOne Landscape Supply Bill Pmt -Check 6570 11/01/2024 615.00

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6571 11/01/2024 5,550.00

Titusville Area Chamber of Commerce Bill Pmt -Check 6572 11/01/2024 375.00

Titusville Police Department Bill Pmt -Check 6573 11/01/2024 220.00

Tuttle Armfield Wagner Appraisal Bill Pmt -Check 6574 11/01/2024 4,000.00

Waste Management Bill Pmt -Check 6575 11/01/2024 478.70

Gary Barrentine Bill Pmt -Check 6576 11/01/2024 387.40

Bruce Haupt Bill Pmt -Check 6577 11/01/2024 50.00

David Fout Bill Pmt -Check 6578 11/01/2024 46.73

Kenneth Rivard Bill Pmt -Check 6579 11/01/2024 30.00

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6580 11/15/2024 407.61

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6581 11/15/2024 98.16

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6582 11/15/2024 187.62

Black's Spray Service, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6583 11/15/2024 549.00



TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER
NOVEMBER 2024

Brevard County Tax Collector Bill Pmt -Check 6584 11/15/2024 29,055.14

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6585 11/15/2024 33.45

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6586 11/15/2024 242.39

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6587 11/15/2024 37.81

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6588 11/15/2024 260.00

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6589 11/15/2024 84.95

Faster Than Sound, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6590 11/15/2024 1,780.00

Florida Alarm & Security Technologies Bill Pmt -Check 6591 11/15/2024 25.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6592 11/15/2024 4,234.39

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6593 11/15/2024 685.66

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6594 11/15/2024 807.43

Home Depot Credit Services Bill Pmt -Check 6595 11/15/2024 912.03

Lacy's Lock Bill Pmt -Check 6596 11/15/2024 11.00

LOWE'S Bill Pmt -Check 6597 11/15/2024 360.50

Metal Roof Factory, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6598 11/15/2024 234.00

NAPA Auto Parts Bill Pmt -Check 6599 11/15/2024 199.98

Robertson's Lawns Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6600 11/15/2024 1,370.00

Southeast Services of CFL Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6601 11/15/2024 285.00

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6602 11/15/2024 10,435.00

Watkins Oil Bill Pmt -Check 6603 11/15/2024 3,890.26

Whitebird Attorneys at Law Bill Pmt -Check 6604 11/15/2024 14,714.50

Travis Haferkamp Bill Pmt -Check 6605 11/15/2024 70.54

Michael Katz Bill Pmt -Check 6606 11/15/2024 151.25

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6607 11/29/2024 407.61

Davis Vision Bill Pmt -Check 6608 11/29/2024 69.53

CHLIC Bill Pmt -Check 6609 11/29/2024 553.15

Board of County Commissioners Bill Pmt -Check 6610 11/29/2024 15,696.35

Standard Insurance Company Bill Pmt -Check 6611 11/29/2024 619.58

Allen Enterprises, Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6612 11/29/2024 391.08

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6613 11/29/2024 35.63

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6614 11/29/2024 473.10

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6615 11/29/2024 1,712.50

AT&T Mobility Bill Pmt -Check 6616 11/29/2024 409.62

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6617 11/29/2024 3,453.90

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6618 11/29/2024 7,189.92

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6619 11/29/2024 8,498.04

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6620 11/29/2024 320.34

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6621 11/29/2024 1,220.72

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6622 11/29/2024 44.95

Christina Kinard Bill Pmt -Check 6623 11/29/2024 513.22

Dish Bill Pmt -Check 6624 11/29/2024 87.10

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6625 11/29/2024 504.07



TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER
NOVEMBER 2024

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6626 11/29/2024 834.67

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6627 11/29/2024 2,278.75

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering Bill Pmt -Check 6628 11/29/2024 25,569.24

Nix Pest Management Bill Pmt -Check 6629 11/29/2024 256.00

Pitney Bowes Global Financing Services Bill Pmt -Check 6630 11/29/2024 192.54

Southeast Services of CFL Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6631 11/29/2024 587.57

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6632 11/29/2024 825.00

The Quotient Group Bill Pmt -Check 6633 11/29/2024 12,100.00

W&J Construction Corporation Bill Pmt -Check 6634 11/29/2024 60,411.13

Michael Hall Bill Pmt -Check 6635 11/29/2024 53.66

Kenneth Rivard VOID 6579 11/21/2024 -30.00

Michael Hall Bill Pmt -Check 6636 11/29/2024 25.00

Judith Rivard Bill Pmt -Check 6637 11/29/2024 190.46

Charles Downing Bill Pmt -Check 6638 11/29/2024 151.25

Andra Shirley Bill Pmt -Check 6639 11/29/2024 25.00

TOTAL $437,004.60



 TITUSVILLE COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority

Check Register
December 2024

Vendor Type Num Date Amount

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6640 12/12/2024 407.61

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6641 12/13/2024 565.97

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6642 12/13/2024 187.50

AT&T Internet Bill Pmt -Check 6643 12/13/2024 64.20

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6644 12/13/2024 7,300.00

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6645 12/13/2024 143.80

Carr, Riggs & Ingram Bill Pmt -Check 6646 12/13/2024 4,000.00

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6647 12/13/2024 54.95

East Coast Fence & Guardrail Bill Pmt -Check 6648 12/13/2024 3,012.16

Faster Than Sound, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6649 12/13/2024 1,780.00

Florida Alarm & Security Technologies Bill Pmt -Check 6650 12/13/2024 137.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6651 12/13/2024 793.63

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6652 12/13/2024 3,270.69

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6653 12/13/2024 1,502.93

Home Depot Credit Services Bill Pmt -Check 6654 12/13/2024 872.09

Konica Minolta Business Solutions Bill Pmt -Check 6655 12/13/2024 542.88

Pitney Bowes Bank Inc Purchase Power Bill Pmt -Check 6656 12/13/2024 200.00

Robertson's Lawns Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6657 12/13/2024 1,000.00

Southeast Services of CFL Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6658 12/13/2024 220.00

Southern Impact Welding LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6659 12/13/2024 15,300.00

Spacecom - Global Spaceport Alliance Bill Pmt -Check 6660 12/13/2024 2,000.00

Staples Bill Pmt -Check 6661 12/13/2024 47.49

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6662 12/13/2024 17,771.00

Titusville Area Chamber of Commerce Bill Pmt -Check 6663 12/13/2024 175.00

Waste Management Bill Pmt -Check 6664 12/13/2024 504.77

Watkins Oil Bill Pmt -Check 6665 12/13/2024 2,179.54

Whitebird Attorneys at Law Bill Pmt -Check 6666 12/13/2024 4,403.50

Wolen, L.L.C. Bill Pmt -Check 6667 12/13/2024 622.52

Sheltair Dunn, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6668 12/13/2024 200,000.00

Sheltair Space Coast, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6669 12/13/2024 200,000.00

Chloe Aguilar Bill Pmt -Check 6670 12/13/2024 50.00

Allen Enterprises, Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6671 12/27/2024 3,440.69

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6672 12/27/2024 151.14

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6673 12/27/2024 472.68

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6674 12/27/2024 882.39

AT&T Mobility Bill Pmt -Check 6675 12/27/2024 409.65

Brady Industries, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6676 12/27/2024 913.57

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6677 12/27/2024 66.90

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6678 12/27/2024 381.34

Civilian Military Council Bill Pmt -Check 6679 12/27/2024 485.00

 Page 1 of 2



 TITUSVILLE COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority

Check Register
December 2024

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6680 12/27/2024 619.64

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6681 12/27/2024 639.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6682 12/27/2024 1,330.04

Gatto's Tires & Auto Service Bill Pmt -Check 6683 12/27/2024 800.88

Titusville Area Chamber of Commerce Bill Pmt -Check 6684 12/27/2024 250.00

Waterbird Window Cleaning Bill Pmt -Check 6685 12/27/2024 870.00

Stine Fredheim Bill Pmt -Check 6686 12/27/2024 1,453.06

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6687 12/27/2024 475.00

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6688 12/27/2024 319.24

Davis Vision Bill Pmt -Check 6689 12/27/2024 73.86

CHLIC Bill Pmt -Check 6690 12/27/2024 418.01

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6691 12/27/2024 407.61

Board of County Commissioners Bill Pmt -Check 6692 12/27/2024 15,933.41

Standard Insurance Company Bill Pmt -Check 6693 12/27/2024 625.34

Nardella & Nardella, PLLC Bill Pmt -Check 6694 12/27/2024 7,500.00

Nardella & Nardella, PLLC Bill Pmt -Check 6695 12/27/2024 1,715.00

 Page 2 of 2



Vendor Type Num Date Amount

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6696 01/10/2025 407.61

Aerosimple LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6697 01/10/2025 4,800.00

Allegion Access Technologies LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6698 01/10/2025 2,084.68

Allen Enterprises, Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6699 01/10/2025 1,329.31

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Serv. Bill Pmt -Check 6700 01/10/2025 7,961.00

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6701 01/10/2025 1,369.57

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6702 01/10/2025 187.54

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6703 01/10/2025 830.11

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6704 01/10/2025 1,931.25

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6705 01/10/2025 4,605.20

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6706 01/10/2025 25,494.12

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6707 01/10/2025 5,884.24

AT&T Internet Bill Pmt -Check 6708 01/10/2025 64.20

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6709 01/10/2025 100.35

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6710 01/10/2025 863.32

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6711 01/10/2025 46.93

Dish Bill Pmt -Check 6712 01/10/2025 87.10

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6713 01/10/2025 49.74

Dynafire Bill Pmt -Check 6714 01/10/2025 564.36

Faster Than Sound, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6715 01/10/2025 1,780.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6716 01/10/2025 1,948.24

Gatto's Tires & Auto Service Bill Pmt -Check 6717 01/10/2025 854.61

Home Depot Credit Services Bill Pmt -Check 6718 01/10/2025 704.81

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering Bill Pmt -Check 6719 01/10/2025 55,657.80

Lacy's Lock Bill Pmt -Check 6720 01/10/2025 3,169.00

LOWE'S Bill Pmt -Check 6721 01/10/2025 334.18

Metal Roof Factory, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6722 01/10/2025 890.00

Public Risk Management of Florida Bill Pmt -Check 6723 01/10/2025 93,237.00

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6724 01/10/2025 44,361.82

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6725 01/10/2025 39,797.96

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6726 01/10/2025 96,305.01

Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6727 01/10/2025 494.23

Slack Johnston Magenheimer Bill Pmt -Check 6728 01/10/2025 9,000.00

Staples Bill Pmt -Check 6729 01/10/2025 78.33

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6730 01/10/2025 9,839.00

Titusville Police Department Bill Pmt -Check 6731 01/10/2025 220.00

United Rentals (North America), Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6732 01/10/2025 1,620.45

Waste Management Bill Pmt -Check 6733 01/10/2025 530.83

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6734 01/24/2025 432.61

Allen Enterprises, Inc. Bill Pmt -Check 6735 01/24/2025 1,894.40

Alligator Plumbing Bill Pmt -Check 6736 01/24/2025 38.90

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6737 01/24/2025 297.27

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6738 01/24/2025 472.72

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6739 01/24/2025 884.52

AT&T Mobility Bill Pmt -Check 6740 01/24/2025 410.05

Black's Spray Service, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6741 01/24/2025 435.00

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6742 01/24/2025 68.90

Chapman Carpet and Supply Bill Pmt -Check 6743 01/24/2025 4,914.80

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6744 01/24/2025 336.66

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6745 01/24/2025 335.41

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6746 01/24/2025 90.91

Dynafire Bill Pmt -Check 6747 01/24/2025 912.24

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6748 01/24/2025 4,798.46

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6749 01/24/2025 766.38

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6750 01/24/2025 655.89

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6751 01/24/2025 795.38

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6752 01/24/2025 1,176.65

Graphic Press Bill Pmt -Check 6753 01/24/2025 15.00

Lacy's Lock Bill Pmt -Check 6754 01/24/2025 365.00

Nix Pest Management Bill Pmt -Check 6755 01/24/2025 256.00

Quadrex Aviation, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6756 01/24/2025 9,560.00



Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6757 01/24/2025 481.20

Southern Impact Welding LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6758 01/24/2025 9,216.00

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6759 01/24/2025 740.00

TEN-8 FIRE & SAFETY, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6760 01/24/2025 124.15

Whitebird Attorneys at Law Bill Pmt -Check 6761 01/24/2025 3,715.64

Davis Vision Bill Pmt -Check 6762 01/24/2025 73.85

CHLIC Bill Pmt -Check 6763 01/24/2025 479.62

Standard Insurance Company Bill Pmt -Check 6764 01/24/2025 625.34

Board of County Commissioners Bill Pmt -Check 6765 01/24/2025 15,933.40

Anthony Lohr Bill Pmt -Check 6766 01/24/2025 25.00

Anthony Lohr Bill Pmt -Check 6767 01/24/2025 25.00

Troy Smith Bill Pmt -Check 6768 01/24/2025 402.37

TOTAL 481,238.62



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

   November 2024











 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

   December 2024











 TITUSVILLE COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
 Profit Loss Budget Overview

 December 2024

Actual Budget %
Dec '24 Oct '24 - 'Sep 25 Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Grant Revenue 370,790$            -$                         
Aeronautical Revenue

T-Hangar Leases 356,125              1,361,519           26.16%
Bldg Leases & Land Leases 424,324              1,478,468           28.70%
FBO Bldg, Land & Fuel Flowage 104,599              182,568              57.29%
Investment Fee 7,560                   30,240                25.00%

Total Aeronautical Revenue 892,608              3,052,795           29.24%
Non-Aeronautical Revenue

Bldg Leases 15,813                38,875                40.68%
Land Leases 51,978                332,360              15.64%
Storage Unit Leases 60,234                253,335              23.78%

Total Non-Aeronautical Revenue 128,026              624,570              20.50%
Misc. Income 5,970                   2,500                   238.79%
Property Ins. Refund (VAC) 34,045                

Total Income 1,431,439           3,679,865           38.90%

Expense
Fringe Benefits 124,477              505,505              24.62%
Operating Expenses

Salaries & Wages 223,821              956,485              23.40%
Hiring Expenses 118                      500                      23.60%
Education & Training 2,237                   17,000                13.16%
Professional Services 25,773                128,200              20.10%
Consulting Services 12,181                90,000                13.53%
Information Technology -                           6,600                   0.00%
Contracted Services 9,564                   37,500                25.50%
Insurance 113,053              441,551              25.60%
Office Equipment 537                      9,900                   5.42%
Office Services 1,416                   11,400                12.42%
Memberships & Subscriptions 9,174                   36,000                25.48%
Marketing 11,901                22,600                52.66%
Taxes, Permits & Fees 6,403                   -                           
Fuel Systems 6,070                   38,000                15.97%
Repairs & Maintenance 93,134                463,804              20.08%
Travel 1,916                   11,000                17.42%
Utilities 43,647                205,000              21.29%
Capital Outlay -                           320,000              0.00%
Depreciation 661,987              
Bank Fees 5,551                   -                           

Total Expense 1,352,959           3,301,045           40.99%
Net Ordinary Income 78,480                378,820              20.72%

For Management Use Only
Page 1 of 2



 TITUSVILLE COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY
 Profit Loss Budget Overview

 December 2024

Actual Budget %
Dec '24 Oct '24 - 'Sep 25 Budget

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income 579                      -                           
Total Other Income 579                      -                           
Other Expense

Development 20,092                263,209              7.63%
Contingency -                           115,611              0.00%
Interest Expense -                           -                           
Fraudulent Expense -                           -                           

Total Other Expense 20,093                378,820              5.30%
Net Other Income (19,514)               (378,820)             5.15%

Net Income 58,968$              -$                         

For Management Use Only
Page 2 of 2



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

   January 2025



Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority, Florida
PRELIMINARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1/31/2025



1/31/2025
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,338,602$           
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 271,688                
Accounts receivable 391,688                
Reserve for Bad Debt (845,554)               
Leases receivable 78,128                  
Due from other governments 396,347                
Prepaid expenses 158,180                

Total current assets 1,789,080             

Noncurrent capital assets
Land 13,621,899           
Buildings and improvements 34,994,472           
Runways and  lighting 46,066,773           
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 655,487                
Vehicles 1,261,417             
Construction in  process 8,023,371             
Accumulated depreciation (35,730,251)         
Lease receivables 19,851,689           

Total noncurrent capital assets 88,744,856           
Total assets 90,533,936$        

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow related to pensions 340,348$              
Deferred outflow related to other post-
employment benefits 14,044                  

Total deferred outflows of resources 354,392$              

Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority
Statements of Net Position

For Management Use Only
Page 2 of 3



1/31/2025
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 255,309$              
Retainage payable 5,197                     
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 85,976                  
Truist -  Line of Credit 1,500,000             
ST - Note payable - USATS Bldg 1 240,000                
Refundable deposits 271,688                
Unearned revenue 1,169,894             
Compensated absences 103,255                

Total current liabilities 3,631,319             

Noncurrent liabilities
      Note payable - USATS Bldg 1 240,000                

Net pension liabilities 1,367,849             
Other post-employment benefits liability 28,925                  

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,636,774             
Total liabilities 5,268,093$           

DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 147,095                
Deferred inflows of leases 17,651,890$        

Total deferred inflows  of  resources 17,798,985$        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 68,198,555$        
Restricted for airport improvements 995,081                
Unrestricted (1,372,386)           

Total net position 67,821,250$        

Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority
Statements of Net Position

For Management Use Only
Page 3 of 3



Arthur Dunn Merritt Island
Space Coast 

Regional
Space Coast 

Space Station
TCAA Airport 

Authority G&A Consolidated
Operating revenues

T-hangars 73,080$        261,998$      139,721$       -$                       -$                       474,800$            
Fixed base operations 28,400          68,154          41,351            -                         -                         137,905               
Building, land, and other leases 38,115          108,353        341,757          245,948                -                         734,172               
Miscellaneous revenue 10,150          1,101             37,319            1,863                     -                         50,433                 

Total Operating Revenue 149,745        439,606        560,148          247,811                -                         1,397,311           

Operating expenses
Operating and maintenance expenses

Wages and personnel expenses 46,511          92,867          210,435          39,680                  96,384                  485,878               
Professional services 5,055             22,436          5,056              631                        52,743                  85,921                 
Communications and utilities 4,814             23,067          27,317            -                         10,234                  65,431                 
Insurance 18,825          44,342          77,068            16,241                  5,280                     161,756               
Marketing & website -                 10,000          -                  38                          6,186                     16,224                 
Repairs and maintenance 14,498          39,978          84,267            1,093                     2,948                     142,784               
Materials  and supplies 3,459             2,828             8,026              2,246                     14,702                  31,261
Gain/Loss Disposed Fixed Assets -                 -                 -                  -                         -                         -                       
Bad debt expense -                 -                 -                  -                         -                         -                       

Total operating and 
maintenance expenses 93,162          235,518        412,169          59,928                  188,477                989,254               

Non-cash operating expenses
Depreciation 74,539          251,400        531,899          25,353                  -                         883,191               

Total operating expenses 167,701        486,918        944,069          85,281                  188,477                1,872,445           

Operating gain (loss) (17,955)         (47,311)         (383,920)        162,530                (188,477)               (475,134)             

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 579                        579                      
Interest expense -                         -                       

Total non-operating  revenues 
(expenses) -                 -                 -                  -                         579                        579                      

Gain (Loss) before contributions (17,955)         (47,311)         (383,920)        162,530                (187,897)               (474,555)             

Capital contributions 53,839          209,964        250,102          -                         -                         513,905               

Change in net position 35,884$        162,653$      (133,819)$      162,530$              (187,897)$             39,350                 
Net position, beginning of year 67,781,900         

Net position, January 31, 2025 67,821,250$       

Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority
Preliminary Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Four Months Ending January 31, 2025

For Mangement Use Only
Page 3 of 3



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT 
AUTHORITY ATTORNEY 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORTS 
AUTHORITY MEMBERS 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURN 


	Additional Survey Exhibit-Exh A.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A


	Additional Survey Exhibit-Exh B.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	B


	Justin Project and Operations Update Feb 2025.pdf
	Airport Project Updates
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Airport Noise ComplaintsDecember 2024
	Slide Number 9

	December 2024 Check Register.pdf
	December 2024

	November 2024 Check Register.pdf
	Sheet1

	December 2024 Check Register.pdf
	December 2024

	December 2024 Budget to Actual.pdf
	Budget to Actual

	January 2025 Financial Statements.pdf
	Cover Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement




